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COMtMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

BEFORE THK PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

DIECA COMMUNICATIONS, INC., d/b/a

COVAD COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY

Complainant,

BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS
INC.

Respondent.
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COMPLAINT 17OR ANTICIPATORY BREACH Ol" THE
PARTIES'NTERCONNECTIONACRKEMENT AND VIOLATIONS OF SECTIONS 271 AND 251

ATi THW, Tpi FC'AMMtiNIC ATIANS At T AF 100n

In its Order'oncluding the investigation into whether BellSouth should be granted

interLATA authority in Kentucky, the Commission acknowledged concerns about BellSourh

policies which have "the effect of chilling local competition for advanceri crnvirrc vi Not)ng

how BellSouth intended to extend those policies to the services it would provide over the fibei-

fed, "next generation" digital loop carrier architecture, the Commission advised fsettsouth of its

plans to continue reviewing this "qumtessentialv issue and actively pursuing a policy that

proniotes the statewide deployment of advanced services while offer/»g CLECs u reasonable

opfiortuniry ro compete. In its Order the Commission noted how BellSouth's line sharing policy

rnvcsriganon concsrnmg ma propnciy ol Provision o/ rnrcrcn ra services ay acfisourn rsrecommumcarions, Inc.
Pursuani ro isc fslecommunicorrom dcr of /996, Case No. 2001-00105 {April 26, 2002) (the "271 Review").
'd., p. 1L
s/r/., p. 14 (amphasis added).

i



might raise issues of competitive discrimination in the future. The Commission's concerns were
4

informed by the knowledge that BellSouth is the largest DSL provider in Kentucky and by the

I'cct that ncngcuth computes aauiuci both CLBCs cud Iutciuct Scr vive pruvtdcrs ("ISF"). In the

271 Review case the Commission stated its intent to "continue closely to monitor BeESouthu and

the DSL market.'his fornml complaint, filed because BellSoulh has explicitly refused to

provide service required under contract with Covad, demonstrates how the Commission's

concerns about BeBSouth were welt-founded.

DIECA Conununications Inc., d/b/a Covad Communications Company (uCnvad"), hy

and through its undersigned attorneys, and pursuant to KRS 278,260(l) and S07 KAR 5:001

Section 15(2), state* ihc Iulluwiug iu support or its Complaliit against Itetthcutn

Telecommunications, Inc. ("BellSouth"):

PARTIES

1. Complainant Caved is a teleconunuuications carrier, as defined by 47 U.S,C. k

153(44), headquartered at 3420 Central Expressway, Santa Clara, California 95051 and with a

regional office at 1230 peachtree Street, ELE., 19a Floor, Atlanta, (IA 30309 rnvud iv a utility

within the meamng of KRS 278.010(3)(e) and is authorized to provide service in the

Cuuuuvuwculili urKcniucky.

2. Respondent BellSouth is a utility within the meaning of KRS 278.010(3)(e) and is

an incumbent local exchange carrier and a Regional Bell Operating Company (uRBOCu), as

defined by 47 U,S.C. I) 251(h)(1) and 47 U,S.C. I) 153(4), respectively, with offices located at

601 West Chestnut Street, Louisville, KY 40203.

/ak p. 25.
'See/d, pp..25,41.
41d.



3. All filings and orders related to this proceeding should be provided to:

Charles (Oene) Watkins
Sensor Counsel
Covod Commmdcottouo Cuulpduy
1230 Peachtree Street, NE, 19u Floor
Atlanta, Georgia 30309
(404) 942-3492
(404) 942-3495 (fax)~u« "
d.'.Kent Hatfieid

Douglas F. Brent
iviiudieton tteutttnger
2500 Brown A Williamson Tower
Louisville, Kentucky 40202
(502) 5g4-1135
(502) 561-0442 fnx

khatfteldAo.middreut.corn

dbrent@middreut.corn

JURISDICTION

4. The Commission has jurisdiction to hear this rnatter pursuant to KRS 278.040, 47

U.S.C. $ 252(e)(3), and 47 U.S.C. ss 253 (b).

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

5. Covad provides broadband telecommunications services to customers witiun the

state of Kentucky using a combination of its own facilities, such as digital transmission and

switchiug ertuipment, and essential facilities leased from Betigouth, such as copper loops.

Covad's customers consrst of two types. The iirst type includes Internet Service Providers

("ISPs") who combine Covad DSL service with Internet functionalittes then provide service

directly to end users. The second type includes end users who obtain directly from Covad DSL

service combined with internet access. BellSouth, either directly or through corporate affiliates,

competes against ISps and i.overt e r, throuph mu or its "Fsstn cop'nternet eer ioe.

6. Covad ihas executed an Interconnection Agreement, dated December 19, 2001,

with Bettsoutn (coiiectiveiy Lovad ano Beiisoutn are reterred to as the "Parttes") that details the

Parties'esponsibtltties to interconnect with each other and otherwise comply with their

obligations under the Telecommunications Act of 1996, Federal Communications Commission



("I'CC") rules and the rules and orders of this Commission. A copy of the

Parties'nterconnection

Agreement, with any amendments is on file with the Commission." There is

p ecently a dicpute under thin agrccmcnt. Pursuant to gent o 12 of thc amccmmti, iilmt pmiy

may petition the Commission for resolution of the dispute.

7, Under section 2.11.1of the Parties'nterconnection Agreement, "BellSouih shall

provide Covad access to the high frequency portion of the local loop as an unbundled network

element." See Interconnection Agreement By and Between BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

and DIBCA Communications, Inc. d/b/a Covad Communications Companv ("Anreemenf') at

section 2.11.1,p. 89. Under Section 2.11.1.2,of the Interconnection Agreement, the Parties

rccognincd that "[t)hnt fcnowing lo p tcquitmitcn& ctc ucccacdty fut Cuvdd tu bc dulc tu access

the High Frequency spectrum: an unconditioned, 2-wire copper loop." Under the terms of the

Parties Interconnection Agreement, Covad ordered loops or portions of loops, from BellSouth,

for use in serving various Covad customers, The loops currently relevant to this dispute are

identified in the two tables set forth below:

22, D - .0 39,200t i I ~ t Am t,i 1 di 8 i htcrrxidamndmcntrxecutedoytheparttes
in December 2002 and January 2003, is posted on the Cotmnusion's public website at:
hrto //1 62. I 1 4.3.165/PS CJCA/1998/1 998-257/00029-AM 0!2303 cdf. There has been an additional amendment
during 2003 (also not relevant to this dispute) which is posted at: http;//162.114.3.165/PSCICA/1998/1998-
2tyi00260-AM 062603.pdrpdf

Section 2.11of the interconnection Agreement «nd other sections and attachments to the interconnection
Agreement referenced in this Complmrit are attnched at Exhibit A.



Table 1 —SDSL

CiRCUIT ID CITY, ST
50,SWXX.501272 Louisville. KY
Ki.LXFU.500625 I.ouisville, KY
Kl.l XFU.500296 Louisville, KY
Kl.LXFU,500413 Louisville, KY

I«V«00»l ll

BELLSOVTH
NOTICE

NDS20030054
ND20030167
ND20030167
ND20030167
NU20(B0167
NDZ0030167

PROPOSED
CHANGE DATE

4'" Otr. 2003
May 1, 2004
May 1, 2004
May 1, 2004
May 1, 2004
M~«2004

Table 2 —Service Provisioned via Line Sharing

BELLSOUTH
POTS NUMBER CITY, ST NOTICE

502.429. Louisville, KY ND20030167
502.429. Louisville, KY ND20030167
502.326. Lotjlsviitv; KY ttr520030167

~502.412. Louisville, KY ND20030167
502.339. Louisville, KY ND20030167
502.412. LouisviBe. KY ND20030167
502.339. Louisville, KY ND20030167
502.327. Louisville, KY ND20030167
502,426. Louisville, KY ND20030167
502.425. Loumtvi1 le, KY ND20030167
502.429. Louisville, KY ND20030167

PROPOSED
CHANGF. DATE

Mav 1, 2004
~«O 200
May 1, 2004
May 10 2004
Mav 1, 2004
Mav 1.2004
May 1, 2004
May 1, 2004
May 1, 2004
May 1, 2004

~Ma 1 2004

8. As "line-shared" loops are identified by a telephone number assigned to the end

user premises associated with the line, Table 2 has been redacted so as not to disclose

information which might identify a specific end user of Covad or of a Covad customer.

9. At all relevant times, Covad has provided BellSouth with timely payment for the

loops or portions of loops it uses to serve Kentucky customers, and complied with all relevant

portions of the Parties * Interconnection Agreement.

10. Covad'v tnte oonnootion Agree«nant with Dvtt8outh ohiigatvs tsvttguuttt iu

maintain the service provisioned to Covad's customers. Agreement, Attachment 7, section 1.8
5



(setting out the circumstances under which BeilSouth may discontinue service to Covad).

Indeed, the Parties'greement also provides that "BellSouth shall not impose limitation

r stri tions or requirements or requests for the use of the nehvorit moments or oonthinations that

would impair the ability of Covad to offer telecommunications service in the manner Covad

mtends." Agreement, Attachment 2, Network Elements and Other Services, section 1.2.1.

11. Discontinuance of service to Covad is specifically addressed in the

Parties'nterconnection

Agreement in Attachment 7, section 1.8, entitled "Discontinuing Service to

Covad." Under the ternis of the Agreement, BcilSouth may discontinue service to Covad "for

non-payment or in the event of prohibited, unlawful or improper use of BellSouth facilities or

ervioe...e Attaohmont 7, sootion i.a.i. Irosrovor, Co ad has nut uuuuastod iu trave iis smvice

discontinued as a result of Bellsouth's unilateral decision to change its network. Id. This should

come as no surprise, because to have done so would have tbe effect of subjecting Covad's own

customers to disconnection through no fault of their own or Covad. Covad customers

disconnected through unilateral action by BellSouth would have little alternative but to turn to

BellSouth for tbe services previously provided by Covad.

12, Although BellSouth has been replacing copper cable with fiber optics for years,

BoiiSouth did not ask for or ohtnin tho rontta tuai ialtt tu out-uff sottise iu Cuvad or Covad's

customers during its selective conversion of some facilities to fiber.

13. At no time have any of the customers at issue or Covad violated any of the

provisions of Attachment 7, section 1,8 which would entitle BellSouth to discontinue service to

Covad or its customers.

14. Nevertheless, BellSouth has notified Caved that BcllSouth intends on removing a

portion of the copper loop between end-user premises and the central office such that Covad's



customer will permanently lose service from Covad.

15. BellSouth has admitted in response to interrogatories filed in Docket No. P-55,

Sub I 457 before the North Carolina Util»ties Commiccioc that there lo ao provision within thc

Parties'nterconnection Agreement authorizing BeilSouth to disrontuiue service to a Covad

customer by changing its network. See Response of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. to

Covad's First Data Requests, North Carolina Utilities Commission, Docket No. P-55, Sub 1457,

filed August 18, 2003, Item No. 19. This response is attached as Exhibit B.

16. BellSouth asserts that the I'ederal Communicatioiis Commission (oFCCol

provides it the right to install tiber and retire copper subloops within the BellSouth network.

Covad dose aot take iccue»vith this assertion. Ilowcvor, coithor thc FCC, thc

Telecommunications Act of 1996 nor the Parties'nterconnection Agreement provide BellSouth

the right to discontinue existing service to a Covad customer in connection ivith network

modifications,

17. The FCC explicitly left to the states the role of developing rules for copper

retirement and its potential impact on service to competitive carriers'ustomers. Specificallv.

the FCC stressed that owe are not preempting the ability of any state commission to evaluate an

incumbent LEC's rctircmoot of its ooupor loup» iu cu»ms»uuli ictit ciucnt cuinplies witli any

applicable state legal or regulatory requirements."9

18. In negotiations with BellSouth, BeiiSouth explicitly refused to continue the

service provisioned to Covad's customers by BellSouth under the terms of the

Parties'iterconnection

Agreement.

'eport and Order and Order on Reniand and Pci ther Notice ofProposed Raiemaking, FCC
03-36, Released August 21, 2003, ("Tnennial Review Order" ) g 284, p. 171.



19. Covad expects the customers associated with the circuits identified in paragraph 7

to lose their service beginmng during the fourth quarter of this year.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Violation of Section 2, Attachment 2, Sections 1.2.1and 2.1.4and Attachment 7, Section
1.8of the Parties'nterconnection Agreement)

20. Covad hereby incorporates each and every preceding paragraph of this Complamt

into this claim for relief; A conv of the relevant provisions of the parties'ntercnnnection

agreement is attached hereto as Fxhibit A. On December 19, 2001, the Parties executed an

huervuuuemiuu Ameruteui puisuatii iu the requirements of Section 152 of the

Telecommunications Act of 1996, containing the following terms;

a. Section 2 of the Parties'nterconnection Agreement provides that, 9BellSouth

will provide Covad with the functionalities of unhandled network elements so that Covad can

provide any telecommunications service that can be offered by means of the unbundled elements

as described in Attachment 2."

b. Attachment 2, Section 1.2.1 of the Parties'nterconnection Agreement provides

that,, "Bscepi as uihetwtse required by law, BettSouth shall not tmpose limitation restnctions or

requirements or requests for the use of the network elements or combinations that would impair

the ability of Covad to offer telecommunications service in the manner Covad iritends."

c. Attachment 2, Section 2,1.4 of the Parties'nterconnection Agreement provides,

in relevant part, that, "BellSouth will only provision, maintain and repair loops to the standards

that are consmtent with the type nf lnnp nrilered "

d. Attachment 7, Section 1.8 and 1.8.1 of the Parties'nterconnection Agreement

provide that, "Dlscondnuina service to C,ovad. The procedures for discontinuing service to



Covad are as follows: 1,8.1 BellSouth reserves the right to suspend or terminate service for

nonpayment of services or in the event of prohibited, unlawful or improper use of BellSouth

facilities ar csvvira nr any other violation or noncontpliance by Covad of the iulrs otal

regulations contained in BellSouth's tariffs." Modification to Bellgouth's network is nol

ldenuned tn the I'arties'nterconnection Agreement as a basis for BeilSoutb to discontinue

service to Covad or its customers.

e. At all relevant times, Covad has performed in accordance with all material temts

of the Parties'nterconnection Agreement.

22, BellSouth's stated mtention to disconnnue service to Covad and its customers as

cat thrth h e'ill result in a b ach orthe partioe' tcroonncotion Anmcatc rb ltr.luuiun, hut

not lilnited to, Section 2, Attachment 2, Sections 1.2.1and 2.1.4 and Attachment 7, Section 1.8.

in adrhtion, disconnection of service by BellSouth would have irreparable harmfiil effect—

customers currently served by Covad or Covad's ISP customers would be forced to turn to

BellSouth for substitute services, The Commission has statutory authority to investigate this

claim of inadequate service. KRS 278.260(I).

23, Accordingiy, Covad respectfully requests that the Commission; I) order that

Dellnouth may not dl continue service to Covad or its custuutots lu dctugauun or. rhe

pattieS'nterconnection

Agreement until further order of the Commission; and 2) issue an order for

BeliSouth to satisfy or answer this complaint.

SECOND CLAIM I'OR RELIEE

(Anticipatory Violation of 47 U.S.C.$ 271(c)(2)(B)(ii)and (iv) —The Competitive Checklist)



24. Covad hereby incorporates each and every preceding paragraph of this Complaint

into this claim for reiief.

25. 47 U.S,C. 1) 271(c)(2)(B)(ii) ("Checklist Item 2") requires RBOCs, including

BellSouth, seeking authority to provide interLATA service to provide non-discriminatory access

to nebvork elements m acrmrd«n«e with 'l 7 V.S.C. I lj 25 I («1(31 «nd 252(d).

26. 47 U.S.C. > 271(c)(2)(B)(iv) ("Checklist Item 4") requires RBOCs seeking

authority to provide interLATA service to provide local loop transmission from the central office

to the customer's premises, unbundled from local switching or other services. The FCC has

clarified that compliance with Checklist Item 4 requires providing access to digital capable loops

on a non-discriminatory basis.

27, RBOCs that have obtained approval to offer interLATA services, such as

BettSouth, are obligated to remain in compliance with all Checklist Iimiis «nei approval of their

applications. Noncompliance, or "backsliding,'* may be punished by the FCC pursuant to 47

U.S.C, t'I 271(d)(6). While ultimate enforcement of t) 271 violations lies with the FCC, this

Cammission plays an important role in ensuring t) 271 compliance,

28. If BeliSouth carries through on its promise to discontinue service to Covad and its

customers, BellSouth will cease to comply with Checkhst Items 2 and 4 by intentionally

violating 47 U.S.C. i't 251(c)(3). The Commission has clear authority to order BellSouth to

«empty with th«Compctitivv Chcvtdist. Shuutd Beilsuuiti disobey such a Commtsston order,

the Commission can refer the matter to the FCC for enforcement pursuant to 47 U.S.C. 53

271(ii)(6).

29. Accordingly, Covad respectfully requests that the Commission: 1) order that

BellSouth may nat discontinue service to Caved or its customers in demgation of the
parties'a



Interconnection Agreement until further order of the Commission; and 2) issue an order for

BellSouth to satisfy or answer this complaint.

THIRD CI.Ali)I FOR RELIEF

(Anticipatory Violation of Scctiou 231(c)(3)ol'lrc Tctccouuuuuic»tin»a Aci ut'996)

30. Covad hereby incorporates each and every preceding paragraph of this Complaint

into this claim for relief.

47 U.S.C, 4 251(c)(3)states:

(3) Unbundled access

hncumbent local exchange carriers have] [t]he dutv to provide. to
any requesting telecommunications camer for the provision of a
telecommunications service, nondiscriminatory access to network
elements on an unbundled basis at any technically feasible point on
rates, remi», »ud cunduiuns itr»i arc jusl, reasonable, and
nondiscriminatory in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the agreement and the requirements of this section and section 252
of this title, An mcumbent local exchange camer shall provide
such unbundled network elements in a manner that allows
requesting carriers to combine such elements in order to provide
such telecommunications service.

31. If BellSouth unilaterally discontinues service to Covad and its customers in

violation of the parties'nterconnection Agreement, then BellSouth wig violate 47 U.S.C, lj

251(c)(3) by refusing to provide unbundled access to network elements on rates, terms and

conditions that are just, reasonable and non-discriminatory.

32. Accordingly. Covad respectfully requectc that the Commission 1) nrrter that

BellSouth may not discontinue service to Covad or its customers in derogation of the Parties'



interconnection Agreement until further order of the Commisston; and 2) issue an order for

BellSouth to satisfy or answer this complaint.

R Rfr(IRST Ft3R RRL1RR

33. Por the reasons stated, Covad apphes for:

a, An vrder tnat Uellsouth may not dtscontinue service to Covad or its customers in

derogation of the Parties* interconnection Agreement;

h. an Order precluding BellSouth from discontinuing service to Covad or its

customers through any network change until further order of the Commission; and

c. any other relief that the Commission deems just and appropriate.

1'lsterl tbic?6 dsy of September, 2003.

Respectfully submitted,

Charles (Gene) Watkins
Senior Counsel
Covad Communications Company
1230 Peachtree Street, NE, 19u Floor
Atlanta, Georgia 30309
(404) 942-3492
(404) 942-3495 (FKx)~a

C.
C. Kent Hatfield
Douglas F. Drcot
Middleton Reutlinger
2500 Brown & Williamson Tower
Louisville, Kentuckv 40202
(502) 584-1135
(502) 561-0442 fax
khalf le~Id middreut.corn



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

A copy of the foregoing was served this 26a day of September, 2003, by first class
United States mail, postage prepaid, upon the party listed below.

C. Kent ttatneta v

Honorable Dorothv Chambers
General Counsel - Kentucky
BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.
601 West Chestnut Street, Room 407
P. O. Box taetp
Louisville, Kentucky 40232

13
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Genera! Tenne and Conditions
poa 1

AGREKMKNT

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between Bellgnnrh vel ommwnooero~, ino.,
l"tsensourtr'), a Georgia corporation, snd DIECA Communications, Inc. d/bfa Covad
Communications Company (nCovad"), a Virginia corporation, and shall bc deemed effective as of
the date ot the last signature of both parties (eEfiective Date"). This Agreement may refer to
either BellSouth or Cn od or both oo 'mwey" o "po ii e."

WITNESSETH

v/HntcuAs, net/south rs a local exchange telecommunications company authorized to
provide telecommumcations services m the states of Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina and Tennessee; and

WHEREAS, Covad is or seeks to become a rompetitive local exchange camer
("CLECn) authorized to provide telecommunications services in the states of Alabama, Florida,
Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina, and Tennessee; and

WHEREAS, Covad wishes to purchase unbundled network elements and other
services from BellSouth, resell BellSouth's telecommunications services, and/or the Parties wish

to intemounect their ihcilnies and exchange traffic pursuant to sections 2 91 nnd 252 of the Aor.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein,
BellSouth and Covad agree as follows:

Definition

Affiliate is defined as a person that (duectly or indirectly) owns or controls. is
uwnou or controueu oy„or rs under common ownership or control with, another

person. For purposes of this paragraph, the term "own" means to own an equity
interest (or equivalent thereof) of more than 10 percent.

Commission is defined as the appropriate regulatory agency in each of
BellSouth's nine state region, Alairama, I'loridd, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana,

Mississippi, North Carolina, South Caro lhts, and Tennessee.

Competitive Local Exchange Carner (CLKC) means a telephone company
certificated by the Commission to provide loCal exchange service within

Eeiignn/b'e /bwrel 'eod wee.

End i)sar means the ultimate user of the Telecommunications Service.

FCC means the Federa! Comniunication Commission.

Version 2Q00:8/29/00
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General Terms and Condittons

Page 2

Telecommunicatiuns means the transmission, between or among points specified
by the uscn of infornlation of the user's choosmg, without change in the form or
content of thc information as sent and received.

Telecommunications Service means the offering of telecommunicattOns fcr a fee
directly to the public, or to such classes of users as to be eifectively available
duectly to th public. regardless nf the fsriuti c c d.

Telecommunications Act of 1996 (oAct") means Public Law l(j4-104 of the
Umted States Congress eifective February g, 1996. The Act amended thc
Co~cod tin~ Act ol 1934 (4, V.tbC. SeCtlnn 1 et. Seq.j.

Purpose

Tins Agreement sets forth thc terms and conditions under which Covad wdl obtain
services and unbundled network elements fiom Beggouth to provide
telecommunications services to Covad customers within the territory of BellSouth.
Bollgn tb wdl pro idc Co od 1th thc amotio olittoc of obo clod twtwurk

elements so that Covad can provide any telecommunications service that can be
ofl'ared by means of the unbundled elements as described in Attachment 2.

2.1 Term of the Agreement

2.2 The term of this Agreement shall bc three years, and shall apply ro the state(s) of
Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentuctuw, Louisiana, Miccissippi, North Carolina,

South Carolina and Tennessee. This Agreerrlent shall become eflecttve on the
date the last pmty executes the Agreement.

Th p nl oosxo tbmbr o tolw tl uuuoltuudrodcndelghry(muj uayspnor to
the expiration of this Agreement, they shall commence negotiations for a new

agreement (cSubsequent Agreementc). lf as of the expiration of this Agreement, a
Subsequent Agreement has not been executed by the Parties, then except as set
rortn m Sectton 2.4.2 below, this Agreement shafi oontinuc on a month-to-month

basis while a Subsequent Agreement is being negotiated. The Parties'ights and

obligations with respect to this Agreement after expuation shall be as set forth in

Section 2.4 heinw

Vc cion 2Q00;3/29/00

5 c/533



Attachment 2

Page 3

ACCESS TO NETWORK ELEMENTS AND OTHER SERVtrpq

1. Introduction

Tius Attachment sets forth the unbundied network elements and combinations of
unbundled network elements that BeBSouth agrees to offer to Covad in accordance
with irv oh!isoriono «nd S orion 251(o)(2) vf tl Am. Tlm SPeClnC terma and
conditions that apply to the mrbundled network elements are described below in this
Attachment 2, The price for each unbundled network element and combination of
unbundled Network Elements are set forth in Exhibit C oi'this Agreement.

1.2. For purposes of this Agreement, "Network Element" is defined to mean a facility or
equipment provided by BeBSouth on an unbundled basis as is used by the CLEC m the
prov(stun of a telecommunications service These unbundled nein o v eh ~otv ill h

conshtent with the requirements of the FCC 3)9 rule. For purposes of this

Agreement, combhrations of Network Elements shall be referred to as
''Combinations."

1.2.1. Except as othclwlsc required by law, BcBSouth shaU not impose hmitation restrictions
or requirements or requests for the use of the network elements or combinations that

would impair the abihty ot'Covad to offer teleccmmurdcatious service in the nmnner
Cove J oitondw

1.2.2 Except upon request by Covad, BeBSouth shall not separate requested network
elements that BeBSouth currently combines.

1.3. BeBSouth shall, upon request of Caved, and to the extent technically feasible, provide

to Covad access to its network elements for the provision of Covad's

telecommutucations service. ifnn rate is idonnig 4 w. tl ontroor, the rate fo rh

speciGc service or frmction will be negotiated by the Parties upon request by either

Party.

1.4. Cov*rl moyn roh re r vo h lom tv ood orb oor ic san Dounv rl lor rlw

purpose of combining such network elements in any manner Covad chooses to provide

telecommunication services to its intended users, including recreating existing

BeBSouth services. With the exception of the sub-loop elements wluoh arc located
'utsideor rue cenrral omce, uellsouth shag deliver the network elements purchased

by Covad for combining to the designated Covad collocation space. The network

elements shag be provided as set forth in this Attachment.

Be BS out h shall comply with the requtrenrcnts as set forth in the technical refmcnces

within Attachment 2 unless BeBSouth's actual performance or applicable industry

Version (Q00:3/6100

sc of sss



Attachment 2

Page 5

2.1,3 The provisioning of service to a CLBC collocation space will reilui e moss ofne
cabttng and cross-connections within the central oflice to connect the loop to a local
switch or to other transmission equipment. These cross-connects sre a separate
component, that are not considerefl a part of the loop, and tiros have 6 separate
charge.

2.1.4 The Loop shall be provided to Covad in accordance wiih BellSoutb's TR73600
Unbundled Local Loon Technical Spef.ifirsb e aad appnvebto inch airy stmalard

technical references. Covad shall be provided with sbf months notice of any changes
to the existing loop specifications proposed by BellSouth to TR73600 afler execution
of this Agreement. The 6 month~ notification will not apply if Industry Standards, or
\ g 1 e reactor o~ «medafes 3eqvff e 3 durerent timerrame, it an applicable regulatory
authority or industry forum requires modifications within a shorter time fiame, or if
otherwise agreed to by Covad and BefiSouth.

coven may uuuxe the unbimdled Loops to provide any telecomumnications service it

wishes, so long as such serves are consistent with industry standards and BellSouth's
TR73600

BellSouth wiii only provtsion, mamtam and repair the loops to the standards that are
consisient with the type of loop ordered. In those cases where Covad has requested
that 8cllSouth modify a loop so that it no longer meets the technical parameters of the
original loop type, ihe resulting loop win be mamtained as an Unbundled Copper Loop
(UCL), and Covad shall pay the recurring and non-recumng charges t'or thc resulting
UCL

2. 1.'J BellSouih Order Coordination referenced in Attachment 2 includes two types: *'Order

Coordination" and "Order Coordination - Time Specific."

2.1.6 i Orrlr r r'eerrbeaitoa" enewe Dvnnoutfr maf Cvvad io coordinate the castellation of the

SL2 Loops, Unbundled Digital Loops (UDL) and other Loops where OC maybe
purchased as an option, to Covad's faciiities to limit end user service outage. OC is

available when the Loop is provisioned over an existing circuit that is currently
pivviutng service to the end user. Order coordination for physical conversions will be
scheduled st BellSouth's discretion during normal working hours oc the committed

due date and Covad advised. OC shall be provided in accordance with the chart set,"
forth below.

2.1.7 "Order Coordination — Time Specific" refers to service order coordhfstion in which

Covad requests a specific time for a service order conversion to take piece. BellSouth
111 amt< cv ry elfert iv viuuiudafe coven'3 specific corlverslon time request.

However, 86IISouth reserves the right fo negotiate with Covad a conversion time

based on load snd appointment control when necessary. Loops on a single service
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Modification process or the Special Construction orocess. as appiicablr t btcm the
loop type ordered.

2.11 High Prettttrnr y Cprrtru Netwcrt Etc rnt

2.11.1 BellSouth shall provide Covad access to the high fiequency portion of the local Loop
as an unbundled network element ("High Frequency Spectrum" ) at the rates set forth
c.Bxtuxtti c. tseusoutn shall provide Covad with the High Frequency Spectrum
irrespective of whether BellSouth chooses to offer xDSL services on the loop.

2.11.1.1 The High Freuuencv Spectrum is rlefinett st thr &rrtcecry range above tbc vciccbt cd
on a copper loop faciTity carrying analog circuit-switched voiceband transmissions.

Access to the High Prequency Spectrum is mtended to allow Covad the ability to
provide Digital Subscriber i,ine ("xDSL"}data services to the end user for which
9 nsc th pmrid 1 cct vdccm The Pttgn frequency bpectrum shall be available

for any version of xD SL presumed acceptable for deployment pursuant to 47 C.P,R.
Section 5 1.230, including, but not linuted to, ADSL, RADSL, and any other xDSL
technology that is presumed to be acceptable for depioytnent pursuant to PCC utter
tsensouth wtfi continue to have access to the low frequenoy portion of'he loop
spectrum {from 300 Hertz to at least 3000 Hertz, and potentially up to 3400 Hertz,
depending on equipment and facilities) for the purposes ofpmviding voice service.
Covad shall only ute xDSL technology that is within thc PSD mask pai sumter bet

forth in T1.413or other applicable industry standards. Covad shall provision xDSL
service on the High Frequency Spectrum in accordance with the applicable Technical
Specifications and Staudiuds.

2.11.1.2 The followmg loop requirements are necessary for Covad to be able to access the High
Frequency Spectrum: an unconditioned, 2-wce copper loop. An unconditioned loop is
a copper loop with no load coils. Iow-pass filter. range rri 4, DAtum, cr
devices and minimal bridged taps consistent with ANSI T1.413and TI.601. The
process of removmg such devires ts cafied "conditiorung." BellSouth shall charge snd
Covad shall pay as interim rates, the same rates that BeUSouth charges for
rccdittotccs etc d alon trope as provided ct ttds ltttcrconnection Agreement {eg.,
unbundled copper loops, ADSL loops, and HDSL loops) until permanent pricing for
loop conditioning are established either by mutual agreement or by 3 state public
utiTities commission. The interim costs for conditiomng are subiect to true un as
promdea m ttus agreement. BellSouth will condition loops to enable Covad to provide
xDSL-based services on the same loops the incumbent is providing analog voice
service, regardless of loop length. BeilSouth is not required to condition a loop m

conneotion with Covad's acrets to the ttiah ur n„» y Sp tram m o dtttcmeg of
that loop irnpaus service fiom the end users perspective. If Covad requests that

BellSouth condition a Loop longer than 18,000 fi. and such conditioning significantly
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degrades the voice services on the loop, Covad shall pay for the loop to he root r d to
lto of tgbfnt stare.

2,1 1.1.3 C"ovatps termination point is the point of tennmation for Covad's on the toU main
distributing kame in the central effif .{"T ~tion Pomp). Jf ltgeutl will uee

jumpers to connect Covad's connecting block to the splitter. The spfitter will route
the High Frequency Spectrum on the circuit to the Covad'9 xDSL equipment in the
Covad's cogocation space.

2.11.1.4 For the purposes oftesting line shared ioops, Covad shall have access to the test
access point associated with the splitter and the demarcation point between
BeUSouth's network and Covad*s network.

2.11.2 PROVISIONING OF IIIGH FRUQIJENCY SPECTRUM AND SPLITTER
SPACE

2.11.2.1 BeUSouth will provide Covad with access to the High Frequency Spectrum as follows:

2.11.2.2 BeUSouth wig mstag splitters within thirty-six (36) calendar days of Covad's
onbndooicn or such order to the Beggouth Complex Resale Support Cfrcup,

2.11.2.3 BeUSouth shaB provide Ccvad the status ofmanuagy submitted LSRs for end user Ime
sharing orders through the PON Repnrt on the CLEC Operations webeito at
httos://elec.begsouth.com

Status shai! mciude FOC Sent, Pending, CanceUed, In Clarification, Jeopardies or
pwj otem Ado o ptton orth oe ofafeses csnbe rounflon ttus webslte. This is a
secure website. Passwords can be obtained kern your account team.

FOr LSRS Submitted thraugh an eleCtrOniC interfaCe (EDI, TAG, LENS. R ebnT A O),
the ronowmg responses wdl be returned to Covad electronically: FOCs, Completion
Notices, En.ors/Ctarificaticns, Pending Order Status, Iecpardies, e,g, missed

appointments. Covad may view CSRs through LENs.

Covad may determine the status of its line sharing end user setvite orders through

CSOTS (CLEC Service Order Tracking System). The service order statuses are

described in the pending Order Status Job Aid located on the wed> at
btt://~.'efeefgfecttcn,bell~Outa,e~c'ma~rtS/leP/OSS hafowhrnLL

Passwords for CSOTS can be obtained kom the account team.

Covad may determ'ute the status of its COSMOS/SWITCH wort rd for tto line

sharing end user orders through the COSMOS/SWITCH Line Sharing Report These
reports wikf provide the telephone number, CLLI code, cable and pair, splitter
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1.5 Pavment Truce The payment will be due on or before the next M! date (i.e., same date
in the fogowing month as the big datel and is payable 1 ~dtktety cv it bl I udc,
except as set forth in section I 4.

If the payment due date fahs on a Sunday or on a Hohday which n observed on a
Monday, the pcytmctt du dutc hcn tec thc 4 et. uuu-ttol1cay dsy tottowmg satch
Sunday or Holiday. If the payment due date fags on a Saturday or on s Hohday which
is observed on Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, or Friday, the payment due date shall
be the last non-Holiday day preceding such Saturday or Hohday. If paymt nt ik ct
.c«/vcd cyme paymeut due date, S late payment penalty, m SCt farth in SeetiOn 1.7,
below, shall apply.

Tax Exemution. Upon prcnf nf t 3 «;.mpt ccctific tic

fi�k

Cnvud, ttm tutal amount
billed to Covad will not include those taxes or fees For which the CLEC is exempt.
Covad will be solely responsible for the computation, tracking, reportmg and payment
of ag taxes and like fees associated with the services provided to the end user of
cc cd. 0 cc un ~c, 433 ccnincstton ann an accouuttng of reimbursable fees is
presented to BeBSouth, BeBSouth shall promptly discontinue taxes and provide a
credit tvhere appropriate within thirty(30) days Bom the date that BeBSouth recetves
tax exemption notice.

1.7 Late Pavment. Ifany portion of the payment is recetved by BeBSouth after the

payment due date as set forth precedmg, or if any portion of the payment is received

by Beggnnth m funds that are nct umncdtntcly available to Befifiouth, then a late

payment pemdty shall be due to BeBSouth, The late payment penalty shall be the

portion of the payment not received by the payment due date times a late factor and

wiB be apphed on a per bill basta. The late factor shall be as set forth in Sectinn A 7
nt'ttc

43cucrut subscrtuer servtces Tsrig, Section 82 of the Private I.itm Service Tariff or
Section E2 of the Intrastate Access Tariff, whichever BeBSouth deternunes is

appropriate. Covad will be charged a fee for ag returned checks as set forth in Section
A2 of the General Subscriber Servitec Yeriff or pmeuunt tc thc uppuctbtc elute taw.

For Cogocatiou, Covad will pay a late payment charge of one and one-half percent (I-
I/2%) assessed monthly on any balance which remains unpnid ager the payment due

date.

1.8 3 " .'3
are as fogows;

t.s.t Be/lsoutu reserves the right to suspend or terminate service for nonpayntent of
services or in the event of prolubited, unlawful or improper use of BeilSouth facifities

or service or any other violation or noncompliance by Covad of the rules and

renulatiomc contk inert n D ltgcuth'5 t. cvfc
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Ifpayment of account is not received by the bill date in the month slier the original bill
date, BeliSouth may provide written notice to Covad that additional sppbcatlons for
service will be refused and that anypcnding orders for service will nor he plat d if
payment ts not received by the fiAeenth day folloiving the date of the notice. In
addition, BeHSouth may, at the same time, give thirty (30) days notice to Covad at the
billing address to discontinue the pmvision of existing services to Covad at any time
thereaAer.

1.8,3 In tbe case ofsuch discontinuance, ag billed charges, as well as applicable termination
charges, shall become due,

1.8.4 IfBefiSouth does not discontinue the provision of the services involved on the date
specified in the thirty days notice and Covad's noncompliance contmues, nothing
contained herein shall preclude BellSouth's right tn rfic nnt'a tl* p,ovtato» r,f th
services to Covad without further notice.

1.8.5 lf paytrmnt is not received or satisfactory arrangements made for payment by the date
given in ttw cmttto notmoatlon, cv «d.'a acr vices will be olsconraluett Upon
discontinuance of service on Covad's account, service to Covad's end users will be
denied. BegSouth will reestabhsh service at the request of the end user or Covad for
BegSouth tn reestablish service upon payment of the appropriate connection fee tmd

subject to tdettgoutt/3 norma! application procedures. Covad is solely recponsible for
notifying the end user of the proposed service duconneraion. Ifwithm AAeen (15)
days after an end user's service has been denied and no arrangements to reestablish
service have been made cnnaictent with this subsection, the and naor'0 aorvico wiu ho

disconnected.

1.9 D~eogit Pc~lie c When purchasing services Rom Bellgouth, Covad wi!L be required to
«omni t th Oollgunth Credit prome anu provide mtormation regarding credit
worthiness. Based on the results of the credit analysis, the Company reserves the nght
to secure the account with a suitable foun of security deposit. Such security deposit

shall take tbe fortn of cash, an Irrevocable I.etter of Credit (Bnllgn lh form), surety
Bond (BeilSouth form) or, in its sole discretion, some other form of security. Any
such securiry deposit shall in no way release Covad from his obligation to make
complete and timely payments ofhis btII. Such security shall be required prior to the

ianna atio n oF m 'oa. If ol mmt a n 0 t d/nr groan monthly Dlltulgs

increased beyond the level initially used to determhte the level of security, then

BellSouth reserves the right to request additional security and/or fiie a Uniform

Commercial Code (UCC-1) security interest in Covad's "accounts receivables and
proceeds." interest on a security deposit, if provided in cash, shel! accrue and be paid
in accordance with the terms in the appropriate Bel!South tariff

Indetermininp whethera security rleprait 1 r nn'd,uauS nth dl am Co d'0

Dun & Bradstreet rating and report details, Covsd's payment history with BellSoutb

and payment history with others as available; the number of years Covad has been in

Vcr«an I O00.3/6/00
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business: Covad's management history and managers'ength ofservice with Covad;
liens, suits and judgments against Covad; VCC-I tilings agahtst Coned's assets; and to
the extent available, Covad's fiuaneiai mfonnatton. Upon the ma«atda« of tbta
revtew, u Eel!South continues to insist on additional security, at Covad's written
request, Betlgouth wtfi provide an explanation in writing to Covad justifying the
decision for addittonal deposit.

I.IO Rates. Rates for Optional Daily Usage Pile (ODUF), Enhanced Optional Daily Usage
File (EODUF), Access Dmly Usage File (ADUP), snd Centralized Message
Distribution Service (CMDS) are set out in Exhibit A to tins Attachment. Ifno rate n
tJ «thtad in uus Auachment, the rate for the specific service or fimction will be as set
forth in applicable BefiSouth tarifi'or as negotiated by the Parties upon request by
either Party.

Billing Accuracy Certification

2.1 Upon request, BellSouth and Covad wiil agree upon a billing quality assurance
prouram fa h bht«th atatttams covenxt m ttus Agreement that will eliminate the need
for post-billing reconciTiation. Appropriate terms for access to any BellSouth
documents, systems, records, and procedures for the recording and bdling of charges
will be pan of that program

2.2 As part of the biiling quality assurance program, BellSouth and Covad will develop
standards, measurements, and performance requirements for a local bfifing
mes ntrrmants process. On a regular basis Oahgouth wih provide Covad wtth

mutuafiy agreed upon performance measurement data that substantiates the accuracy,
reliability, and integrity of the bltthtg process for local billing. In return, Covad wig

pay all bills received from BellSouth in fufi by the payment due date.

2.3 Local billing dkscrepanmes will be addressed in an orderly manner via a mutually

agreed upon billing exemption process.

2.3.1 Fach Party agrees to notify the other Party upon identifying a billing discrepancy. The
Parties shall endeavor to resolve any bilhng discrepancy wtthin thirty (30) calendar

days of the notificatron date A mutually agreed upon escalation process utill be
aat bt'abad for ra* t ' toast btttmg dtsu'epsllcles as part ot the biting quality
assmance program.

Closure of a specdic billing period will occur by joint aareement of the Patties
whereby the Parties agree that such billing period is closed to any fiuther analysis and

financial transactions except those resulting fiom regulatory mandatee. Closure will

take place within a mutually agreed upon time interval &om the bill date. The month

beinn el«marl rrprr ntt thos barn tb*t bhtad o bautd ba I a bm 0 by

the designated bdl date. "Closure" shall mean no new Covad accounts shaB be added

to the bill for the bifiing period at imue.

vra/ra I catt 3/0/0 0
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Ilcllncurh Tctccuuuururtcauons, lrrc.
North Carolina Utilities Commission

Docket No. P-55, Sub 1457
Covad's First Data Requests

August 18, 2003
Item No. 19
Page I of I

REQUEST: Identify the section of the BeIISouth/Covad interconnection agreement
under which BellSouth has authority to remove copper facilities, thereby
terminating Covad customers'ervice,

RESPONSE: The parties'nterconnection agreement does not explicitly address the
subject of the removal of copper facilities, nor does it need to do so.
Neither the Act nor FCC rules have ever imposed a blanket prohibition on
Bcngouth's ability tu rcdrc cuppcr luups cod subloops. Rather, the Act
and FCC rules have simply required that all ILECs provide adequate
public notice of any network changes that may impact a CLFs ability to
provide service. Atter leamina of the North Carolina Department of
Transportation's decision to widen the road in question, BellSouth
provided notice to all CLPs of its decision to replace the copper plant
currently in place along that road's right-of-way.


